
Joint Lead Member Briefing Planning & Sustainable 
Development and Housing & Neighbourhoods 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Joint Lead Member Briefing Planning & 
Sustainable Development and Housing & Neighbourhoods to be held as follows for the 
transaction of the business indicated.

Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Tuesday, 14 May 2019

TIME: 1.00 pm

VENUE: Members' Conference Room - Salford Civic Centre

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

1  Apologies for absence. 

2  Declarations of interest. 

3  Decision Items (Part 1 - Open to the Public): 

LEAD MEMBER FOR PLANNING & SUSTAINABLE 
DEVELOPMENT 

3a Darwell Avenue, Kirkman Avenue and Barton Road, Barton. (Pages 1 - 20)

3b Hallsworth Road, Winton. (Pages 21 - 34)

3c Hankinson Way / Rossall Way Area, Pendleton - SBNI - TRO 2232. (Pages 35 - 46)

3d Highways Investment Programme (HIP) Capital Budget 2019/20 - 
WITHDRAWN 

3e Highway Drainage Investment Programme (DIP) Capital Budget 
2019/20 and Culvert Investment Programme (CIP) Capital Budget 
2019/20. 

(Pages 47 - 54)

3f Highway Crash Barrier Investment Programme (CBIP) - Capital 
Budget 2019/20. 

(Pages 55 - 62)

Public Document Pack



4  Exclusion of the Public. 

5  Decision Items (Part 2 - Closed to the Public) - No Items. 

6  Any other business. 

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 2602
Claire Edwards E-Mail: claire.edwards@salford.gov.uk



Page 1 of 20 
 

 Part 1 - Open to the Public 
 

 

 
 

 
REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE 

 
 

TO LEAD MEMBER FOR PLANNING AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 
 

LEAD MEMBER BRIEFING 
 

14th May 2019 
 

 
TITLE: CITY OF SALFORD (DARWELL AVENUE, KIRKMAN AVENUE AND 
BARTON ROAD, BARTON) (PROHIBITION OF WAITING) ORDER 2019 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
That the Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable Development consider the 
contents of this report and the deliberations of the Traffic Advisory Panel and make a 
decision to: 
 

(i) Accede to the objections in part;  
(ii) Approve the modified proposals for the ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ 

restrictions on Kirkman Avenue, Darwell Avenue and Barton Road set 
out in this report; and  

(iii) Authorise the making of the Kirkman Avenue, Darwell Avenue and 
Barton Road Traffic Regulation Order in the modified form. 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
A request has been made to the Eccles Highways Task Group to introduce road 
safety measures on Kirkman Avenue and Darwell Avenue at the junction with Barton 
Road in Barton, Eccles. It is proposed to introduce a ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ 
restriction to improve road safety in the area. 
 
A traffic management scheme has been designed to introduce a ‘No Waiting at Any 
Time’ restriction on Kirkman Avenue and Darwell Avenue at the junction with Barton 
Road. These waiting restrictions are indicated on the attached Appendix 1 and 2. 
 
The Traffic Regulation Order to introduce ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restrictions was 
legally advertised on 15th November 2018 for 21 days, during that time 5 objections 
have been received in connection to the proposal.  
 
Having considered the matter, the Traffic Advisory Panel decided to support the 
Report’s Recommendation. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3a



Page 2 of 20 
 

Background  
 
A request has been received from the Eccles Community Committee to introduce road 
safety measures on Kirkman Avenue and Darwell Avenue at the junction with Barton 
Road in Barton, Eccles. It is proposed to introduce a ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restriction 
to improve road safety in the area. 
 
It was proposed to introduce ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ Traffic Regulation Order on 
Kirkman Avenue and Darwell Avenue at the junction with Barton Road. 
 
Kirkman Avenue and Darwell Avenue are two way residential streets. Both streets are no 
through roads. There are unrestricted waiting bays on Barton Road opposite Kirkman 
Avenue and Darwell Avenue. Cars are parking close to the junctions. This inconsiderate 
parking causes difficulties for turning traffic at the junction and for pedestrians to cross. 
 
To address the problems it was proposed to introduce ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ 
restrictions at Kirkman Avenue and Darwell Avenue at the junction with Barton Road. 
These restrictions are detailed in Appendix 1 and Appendix 2. 
 
The scheme was consulted upon by the Traffic Management Unit, local councillors and 
emergency services on 6th August 2018. 
 
The scheme was subject to formal legal advertising on 15th November 2018, for 21 days 
to 7th December 2018. Letters were sent out to premises directly affected by restrictions 
(reproduced in Appendix 3). During this period five objections were received. 
 
The Objections  
 
The first objection is reproduced at Appendix 4. The objection is made by a local 
resident. The resident is objecting to the scheme because proposal would remove all the 
parking around his property. The resident is concerned that his property will be devalued. 
Also the resident is pointing that the area was not notified of the change of use of one of 
the dwellings to make a House in Multiple Occupation (HMO) with 6 residents. The 
resident feels that this change has worsened parking problems on the street. Also the 
resident quoted an e-mail from Project Manager – Physical Regeneration at Salford City 
Council where he advised that ‘there will be no parking restrictions outside your house so 
you will still be able to park outside your house’. This e-mail was sent in connection to 
the road narrowing to the path along the Bridgewater Canal. 
 
The change of use from dwelling to 6 persons HMO did not need planning permission 
hence no planning consultations were carried out. 
 
The resident was advised that the current proposal is not connected to the road 
narrowing. The restrictions are proposed to increase visibility at the junctions both for 
vehicles and pedestrians due to safety concerns.  
 
However, due to the concerns raised in the objection and that there are difficulties for 
residents to park Urban Vision engineers decided to lessen the restrictions at both 
junctions to 5 metres.  
 

Page 2



Page 3 of 20 
 

This has been conveyed to the objector who wishes to maintain his objection on the 
same grounds that he thinks narrowing the road caused the problem and that the Council 
‘lied’ about the ability to park in front of his property. 
 
The resident was advised that according to the Highway Code there should be no 
parking within 10 metres of the junction and that narrowing the road is not connected to 
the visibility issues as they may occur on wider roads if inconsiderate parking takes 
place. The resident was advised that the scheme will be considered by the Traffic 
Advisory Panel. 
 
The second objection is reproduced in Appendix 5. The objection is made by local 
resident. The objector firstly visited Salford City Council to talk with the scheme engineer 
about why restrictions are introduced; the objector was advised to write his objection to 
the legal. In the e-mail the objector feels it is unreasonable to introduce the restrictions 
as there are problems with finding parking places due to a house converted to flats. Also 
the resident pointed that when works were carried out on the Bridgewater Canal 
residents were told that there will be no parking restrictions on this road. 
 
The resident was advised that the new proposal is not connected to the previous works 
on the Bridgewater Canal. However considering matter that there are difficulties for 
residents to park Urban Vision engineers agreed to lessen the restrictions to 5 metres on 
both junctions. After this was conveyed to the objector, this objector decided to withdraw 
the objection. 
   
The third objection is reproduced in Appendix 6 and is made by local resident. The 
objector’s ground is based on a loss of parking spaces in the area due to narrowed road 
and Council’s permission to convert one of houses into 6 persons HMO. 
 
The resident was informed that the scheme’s extents are now 5 metres at both junctions. 
With regards to that the resident withdrew the objection. 
 
The fourth objection is reproduced in Appendix 7. The objection is made by local 
resident. The objector’s view is that restrictions on Barton Road are understandable 
however restrictions on Kirkman Avenue and Darwell Avenue are not needed and they 
will make parking problems even worse. Also the residents said that parking problem has 
got worse due to Council’s approvals for converting houses into flats. 
 
The objector was advised that the house conversion did not need planning consent. The 
objector was informed that the restrictions have been changed to the 5 metres on both 
junctions. With regards to that the resident decided to withdraw the objection. 
 
The fifth objection is reproduced in Appendix 8. The objection is made by local resident. 
The objector oppose to the 10 metres plan on Darwell Avenue as that will cause more 
parking problems on already congested street. 
 
The resident was advised that the plan is now 5 metres on both junctions and the 
resident has now withdrawn the objection. 
 
  

Page 3



Page 4 of 20 
 

Consideration of the Objection  
 
Urban Vision Engineers agree that a balance between visibility and parking for the local 
community and businesses has to be made.  
 
After considering the objections Urban Vision decided to change the length of ‘No 
Waiting at Any Time’ restrictions on Kirkman Avenue and Darwell Avenue at the junction 
with Barton Road to 5 metres on each side. 
 
Therefore, officers recommend that the ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restrictions should be 
shortened to help pedestrians and vehicles with the visibility and to leave more 
unrestricted area for residents to park.  
 
The proposed Legal Schedule and plan for the modified TRO are shown at Appendix 9 
and 10. 
 
Deliberations of the Traffic Advisory Panel  
 
The objection was considered at a meeting of the Traffic Advisory Panel on 17th January 
2019. The objector was informed about the meeting however did not attend. Having 
considered the Report, the Traffic Advisory Panel decided to support the 
recommendation to introduce the Order in its modified form. 
 
Recommendation  
 
That the Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable Development consider the 
contents of this report and the deliberations of the Traffic Advisory Panel and make a 
decision to: 
 

(i) Accede to the objections in part;  
(ii) Approve the modified proposals for the ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ 

restrictions on Kirkman Avenue, Darwell Avenue and Barton Lane set 
out in this report; and  

(iii) Authorise the making of the Kirkman Avenue, Darwell Avenue and 
Barton Road Traffic Regulation Order in the modified form shown at 
Appendix 9 and 10 hereto. 

 
 
Appendix: 

1. Schedule as advertised 
2. Plan as advertised 
3. Letter sent to residents 
4. Objection 1 
5. Objection 2 
6. Objection 3 
7. Objection 4 
8. Objection 5 
9. Revised TRO schedule 
10. Revised TRO plan  

Page 4



Page 5 of 20 
 

APPENDIX 1 – SCHEDULE AS ADVERTISED 
 
 
 
 

PROPOSAL:  
 
Introduction of:  
 
‘No Waiting at Any Time’ Restrictions 
 
 

 
Darwell Avenue 

 

 
Both sides from its junction with the extended south western kerbline of 
Barton Road for a distance of 10 metres in a south westerly direction. 
 

 
Barton Road 

 

 
South west side from a point 10 metres north west from the extended 
north western kerbline of Darwell Avenue to a point 10 metres south 
east from the extended south eastern kerbline of Darwell Avenue. 
 
South west side from a point 10 metres north west from the extended 
north western kerbline of Kirkman Avenue to a point 10 metres south 
east from the extended south eastern kerbline of Kirkman Avenue. 
 

 
Kirkman Avenue 

 

 
Both sides from its junction with the extended south western kerbline of 
Barton Road for a distance of 10 metres in a south westerly direction. 
 

 
 

Page 5



 

Page 6 of 20 
 

APPENDIX 2 – PLAN AS ADVERTISED 

 

P
age 6



 

Page 7 of 20 
 

APPENDIX 3 – LETTER SENT TO RESIDENTS 
 
 
 
 
15th November 2018 
 

 
    
Subject:  

KIRKMAN AVENUE, DARWELL AVENUE, BARTON ROAD – ‘NO WAITING AT ANY TIME’ 

RESTRICTION 

   
 
 
Dear Sir or Madam, 
 
A request has been received from Eccles Community Committee to propose new waiting 
restrictions on Kirkman Avenue, Darwell Avenue and Barton Road. 
 
It is proposed to introduce ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ Traffic Regulation Order on Kirkman 
Avenue and Darwell Avenue at the junction with Barton Road as outlined in the attached plan. 
 
A copy of the proposed Order, a plan of the area and statement of the Council's reasons for 
proposing to make the Order may be examined at Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Rd, Swinton, 
M27 5DA, 8.30 am – 4.30 pm Monday to Friday. Details can be viewed online at 
http://www.salford.gov.uk/parking-roads-and-travel/roads/traffic-orders/.  
 
If you wish to object to the proposed Order you should send the grounds of your objection in 
writing to Fiona Ledden, City Solicitor: phlegal@manchester.gov.uk or PO BOX 532, Town Hall, 
Manchester, M60 2LA, by the 7th December 2018  quoting ref PSH/OUT1093/683. 
 
 
 

Page 7



 

Page 8 of 20 
 

APPENDIX 4 – OBJECTION 1 
 
 
OBJECTION RECEIVED BY E -MAIL ON 20.11.2018 
Objector  
(…) 

 

I have received the proposals for the no waiting at any time restriction for kirkman, darrell 

and barton road. I would strongly like to oppose this. 

 

[…] your proposals would remove all the parking […]. Which in itself is wrong but 

[…expressed need in…] assistance getting out the car and into our home. 

 

There have been 2 major developments on Barton road.  

 

The first was back in 2015 when the council decided to relay barton road and it's proportions 

for development of the canal. The narrowing of the road concerned me I explicitly asked the 

council if this would cause a restriction to parking outside of my property and was told no. 

(email from salford council below) before the works to the road were completed the council 

without prior notice amended the plans and put a lowered kerb crossing outside my house. I 

asked if I can still park outside my house by the onsite representative and was told yes only 

for the council to then impose parking fines for any vehicle parking near the crossing. 

Therefore removing the ability to park at the front of my property. 

 

 

[…] - This property at the start of 2018 was changed into a HMO (House of Multiple 

Occupancy) Neighbours were not notified of the change of purpose of the dwelling until 

after the property had had significant structural change to make it a 6 person hmo. All of the 

tenants have vehicles which has made the parking on Barton and Darwell significantly more 

difficult. When asked the council said no planing was required for this change of purpose. 

 

 

So today to be told that you plan to take parking away […] and therefore further devalue my 

home is infuriating. 

 

Surely a better solution would be to permit the zones so that only residents can park most 

local areas have such a scheme in place and have 2 permits per household with additional 

available at a cost.  

 

Please can you let me know how I can formally say no I object to these plans as I am am sure 

my fellow residents would also do. 

 

And as the council has previously lied to me about parking (below) I am sure you can 

appreciate my concerns. 

 

 

Regards 

 

Page 8



 

Page 9 of 20 
 

[… Quoted e-mail] 
[…] Thank you for attending the consultation session on Monday night. 

I said I would get back to you with regards to the parking situation outside of your house once the 

road has been narrowed.  

I’ve spoken with the Highway Design Engineer for the scheme and he has confirmed the following: 

• The road width currently outside your house is 11.1 metres 

• This will be narrowed to 7.3 metres with the ‘build outs’ 

• In addition to this the pavement outside your house is 2.8 metres wide 

• The average car width in the UK is between 1.5 metres to 1.8metres wide and the average 

lorry and bus width is 2.55 metres 

There will be no parking restrictions outside your house so you will still be able to park outside your 

house. There will be ample space for two cars (one parked and one moving) to pass each other in the 

lane closest to your house. However, it would probably be wise to park slightly encroaching on the 

pavement in the future to allow lorries and buses to pass. 

As discussed on Monday we are trying to best accommodate as many people’s concerns as we can 

and we feel this is the best solution to achieve a shared pedestrian and cycle route on the canal 

towpath, provide replacement tree planting for those taken out on the towpath and to try and 

alleviate some of the wider parking issues that there is currently on Barton Road. 

If you want to discuss this further please feel free to give me a call any time. 

[…] 

Regards 

 
Response  sent by e -mail on 22.11.2018 
Good Afternoon, 
 
Thank you for your e-mail. I will include your objection in my report. 
 
With regards to e-mail which you quoted – this proposal is not connected to works on 
Barton Road. We have received safety concerns for pedestrians and for vehicles 
joining the traffic at both junctions. The Eccles Highways Task Group has prioritised 
this scheme which is now under consultations. 
 
Considering your objection and difficulties for vehicles to find parking places I have 
dropped down the restrictions to 5 metres as per the attached drawing. 
 
In terms of the above can you please confirm either you have no objections to the 
proposal or do you wish to maintain your objection? 
 
If you have more questions please do not hesitate to ask. 
 
[Drawing attached] 
 
 
E-mail sent on 07.12.2018 
 
Good Morning, 
 
I am writing to inform you that today the objection will end. I would really appreciate if 
you could confirm either you have no objections to the new proposal (attached again) 
or do you wish to maintain your objection. 

Page 9



 

Page 10 of 20 
 

 
Any questions please do not hesitate to ask. 
 
Objector – response from 16.12.2018  
Yes I maintain my objection your proposal is an improvement but still creates issues. 

 

I am surprised by the councils view that  

With regards to e-mail which you quoted – this proposal is not connected to works on Barton Road. 

We have received safety concerns for pedestrians and for vehicles joining the traffic at both 

junctions. The Eccles Highways Task Group has prioritised this scheme which is now under 

consultations. 

 

 

I would have said that they were directly related as the council narrowed the road which is the root 

cause of the problem and as such the council lied to me about my ability to park […], and blatantly 

disregarded the fact that the road would be too narrow despite being told this by residents at the 

time. 

 
 
 
 
  

Page 10



 

Page 11 of 20 
 

APPENDIX 5 – OBJECTION 2  
 
OBJECTION RECEIVED BY E-MAIL ON 20.11.2018 
Objector  
Following my recent meeting with […] regarding the above, as requested, I would like 
to object to part of the proposals referenced above. I understand why parking 
restrictions in Kirkman avenue and Darwell avenue have been suggested but cannot 
understand why this has been applied to Barton Road. Residents at […] all have 
cars. Also, […] has just been converted to 6 bed sits( hence possibly 6 more cars). It 
is totally unreasonable that these restrictions are introduced. When work in the area 
on Barton road was carried out we were category told there would be no parking 
restrictions on this road. 
Parking in this area is difficult enough and these changes will make matters much 
worse. Please consider the situation and the community involved, 
Response  sent by e-mail on 22.11.2018   
Good Afternoon, 
 
Thank you for your e-mail. I will include your objection in my report. 
 
Just to clarify – this proposal is not connected to works on Barton Road. We have 
received safety concerns for pedestrians and for vehicles joining the traffic at both 
junctions. The Eccles Highways Task Group has prioritised this scheme which is now 
under consultation. 
 
Considering your objection and difficulties for vehicles to find parking places I have 
dropped down the restrictions to 5 metres as per the attached drawing. 
 
In terms of the above can you please confirm either you have no objections to the 
proposal or do you wish to maintain your objection? 
 
[…] 
 
If you have more questions please do not hesitate to ask. 
 
[Drawing attached]  
 
Objector 26.11.2018  
Thank you for considering my objection. I understand the reasons for the parking 
alterations mentioned. Based on this information, on safety grounds, I do not object 
to the 5 metre restriction. It would have been good to have no restriction on barton 
road but I agree this would not solve the problem highlighted 
 
  

Page 11



 

Page 12 of 20 
 

APPENDIX 6 – OBJECTION 3 
 
 
OBJECTION RECEIVED BY E-MAIL ON 20.11.2018 
Objector  
I am e-mailing to raise my objections to the planned vehicle waiting restrictions on 
Darwell Ave, Kirkman Ave and Barton Rd. 
I am aware that now when properties are built provision is made for parking 2 
vehicles at each property. The houses on Darwell and Kirkman Avenue and Barton 
Road were built in the early 1900's when residents did not own vehicles. The area in 
front of each terraced house can accommodate one small car and when we 
purchased our property on […], this space was adequate for most residents. 
However, it has now become the norm for each adult in a household to own a car 
and many of the properties on the avenue need to accommodate 2, if not 3, vehicles. 
Parking on the avenue is difficult and most evenings both sides of the road are full 
with no free spaces. This has recently been compounded by the councils approval to 
convert one of the houses on Barton Road to 6 bedsits, with no provision for the 
extra vehicles this has produced, many of which park at the top of the avenue where 
the restrictions will be enforced. Whilst I can appreciate the safety concerns this 
raises, I feel the suggested proposals will be unworkable for the residents of Darwell 
Avenue.  
The restrictions would mean the loss of at least 10 parking spaces in the area, with 
no proposals as to where these vehicles can move to. Although there is some space 
on the canal side of Barton Road this is not adequate to contain the volume of 
vehicles that would be left without space to park. It would also mean that elderly 
residents or those with young children may have to park away from their home and 
cross a busy main road or have a long walk back to their house. Unless the council 
can provide alternative parking spaces to compensate for the space lost by the 
restrictions, I feel that the proposal is unworkable and will cause distress to the 
residents of the areas involved.  
I would be grateful if you could consider my objections before the proposal is 
approved. 
Thank you 
Response  sent by e -mail on 22.11.2018 
Good Afternoon, 
 
Thank you for your e-mail. I will include your objection in my report. 
 
We have received safety concerns for pedestrians and for vehicles joining the traffic 
at both junctions. The Eccles Highways Task Group has prioritised this scheme 
which is now under consultation. 
 
Considering your objection and difficulties for vehicles to find parking places I have 
dropped down the restrictions to 5 metres as per the attached drawing. 
 
In terms of the above can you please confirm either you have no objections to the 
proposal or do you wish to maintain your objection? 
 
If you have more questions please do not hesitate to ask. 
[Drawing attached] 

Page 12



 

Page 13 of 20 
 

Objector  25.11.2018 
Thank you for your timely response to my email.  
Having looked at your attachment with the revised plan of a 5 metre restriction I feel 
this is an acceptable compromise. 
I therefore, have no further objections to the proposal. 
Many thanks for addressing my concerns, 
 
 
 
  

Page 13



 

Page 14 of 20 
 

APPENDIX 7 – OBJECTION 4 
 
OBJECTION RECEIVED BY E-MAIL ON 30.11.2018 
Objector  
Morning 
I’m writing regarding the proposed no waiting time on Barton Road/Darwell 
Avenue/Kirkman Avenue. 
I live […] and I understand the proposal to have a no waiting time policy for Barton 
Road because of the new road layout that has recently been completed as the road 
is now a lot narrower but I’m afraid  
That making either Darwell or Kirkman for 10 metres at the top down a no waiting 
area is in complete disregard to all residents. Both Kirkman and Darwell struggle as it 
is to find parking and the top ends of both are used 
To the fullest every night. 
Not only that our local councils have made it impossible to park in most places 
around the Barton area as they are allowing companies to turn the larger houses into 
6 bedsits and we have one right at the top of 
Darwell. Maybe this should also been looked at by the local councils as more and 
more are being converted without any adequate parking spaces being available. 
Where are these people supposed to park? There is nowhere and  
now you are taking away even more spaces, you need to rethink this and all the cars 
that currently park in the Barton road area are going to need to find spaces too and 
the top end of Darwell & Kirkman are going to be needed. 
[…] 
Thanks in advance 
Response  sent by e -mail on 03.12.2018 
Good Afternoon, 
 
Thank you for your e-mail.  
 
We have received safety concerns for pedestrians and for vehicles joining the traffic 
at both junctions. The Eccles Highways Task Group has prioritised this scheme 
which is now under consultation. 
I have already received objections to the scheme which is why different lengths are 
now proposed – see attached drawing, both junctions dropped down to 5 metres. 
 
With regards to house conversion – please be advised that they might not need 
planning consent. 
In terms of the above can you please confirm either you have no objections to the 
proposal or do you wish to maintain your objection? 
Any questions please let me know. 
 
[Drawing attached] 
Objector  04.12.2018 
Morning 
 
I fully understand the road at the top being done this way but if the road layout would 
have been done a little better it might not have been as bad, because of the grass 
verges that come out a little too far especially on the corner 
At the top of Darwell. It is also causing havoc because its bringing the ducks and 

Page 14



 

Page 15 of 20 
 

geese out onto the road which they have never done as much since the new layout. 
As far as the house conversion these are all part of the urban vision Partnership and 
if as many houses are being allowed to be converted without planning permission 
then there should be something that stipulates that 
They should be adequate parking for them, thanks and regards 
 
Response  sent by e -mail on 04.12.2018 
Good Afternoon, 
 
The grass verge is not the problem, the parking at the junction is obstructing visibility 
which is why double yellows are proposed. I would appreciate if you can confirm do 
you wish to maintain your objection to the scheme or withdraw it. 
 
In terms of ducks and geese please fill the attached Highways Devolved Budget 
form, for consideration of putting warning signs. 
 
Regarding house conversions we are aware of problems and Salford City Council 
made some steps towards resolving that – you can read more online, please see link 
below. 
 
https://www.salford.gov.uk/planning-building-and-regeneration/planning-advice/ 
 
Any questions please let me know. 
 
[Form attached] 
Objector  04.12.2018 
As long as no more than 5 meters on either side going down Darwell and Kirkman 
then it wouldn’t cause too much of a problem, regards 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



 

Page 16 of 20 
 

APPENDIX 8 – OBJECTION 5 
 

OBJECTION RECEIVED BY E-MAIL ON 30.11.2018 
Objector  
I wish to object to the proposed plan of no waiting at any time on Darwell Avenue.  
 
Although I agree that this restriction is required on Barton Road as vehicles parked 
there obstruct the view of road users turning out or into Darwell Avenue I am 
however objecting to the Darwell Avenue plan of 10 metres. I don't think it's 
necessary on Darwell Avenue and if implemented will cause major inconvenience to 
residents on the Avenue. […] the majority of residents are multiple car/van owners 
who enjoy parking outside their own home. Such a restriction as this would mean 
residents of the houses closer to Barton Road parking further down the Avenue thus 
causing an already tight and narrow street with minimal parking currently to suffer 
fewer parking spaces outside their own homes. 
 
Please reconsider this proposal and the wishes of the majority of residents on the 
Avenue. 
Response  sent by e -mail on 03.12.2018 
Good Afternoon, 
 
Thank you for your e-mail.  
 
We have received safety concerns for pedestrians and for vehicles joining the traffic 
at both junctions. The Eccles Highways Task Group has prioritised this scheme 
which is now under consultation. 
I have already received objections to the scheme which is why different lengths are 
now proposed – see attached drawing, both junctions dropped down to 5 metres. 
In terms of the above can you please confirm either you have no objections to the 
proposal or do you wish to maintain your objection? 
Any questions please let me know. 
 
[Drawing attached] 
Object or  03.12.2018 
Thank you for your quick response.  
 
I've looked at the revised plan of 5 metres on Darwell Avenue and feel that this is a 
better proposal. 
 
If this plan is implemented then I'm happy to retract my objection. Please keep me 
informed of any changes and the final decision. 

 

Page 16



 

Page 17 of 20 
 

APPENDIX 9 – REVISED TRO SCHEDULE 
 
 
 
 
 

PROPOSAL:  
 
Introduction of:  
 
‘No Waiting at Any Time’ Restrictions 
 
 

 
Darwell Avenue 

 

 
Both sides from its junction with the extended south western kerbline of 
Barton Road for a distance of 5 metres in a south westerly direction. 
 

 
Barton Road 

 

 
South west side from a point 5 metres north west from the extended 
north western kerbline of Darwell Avenue to a point 5 metres south east 
from the extended south eastern kerbline of Darwell Avenue. 
 
South west side from a point 5 metres north west from the extended 
north western kerbline of Kirkman Avenue to a point 5 metres south 
east from the extended south eastern kerbline of Kirkman Avenue. 
 

 
Kirkman Avenue 

 

 
Both sides from its junction with the extended south western kerbline of 
Barton Road for a distance of 5 metres in a south westerly direction. 
 

Page 17



 

Page 18 of 20 
 

APPENDIX 10 – REVISED TRO PLAN 

P
age 18



 

Page 19 of 20 
 

 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  Local Transport Plan 

 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 
N/A 

 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  
 
Implementation of the restrictions would decrease the risk of collisions and improve 
access. 

 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Paul Haley 
 
Where objections are received by the Council following the advertisement of 
proposals, the decision regarding the implementation of the proposals is delegated to 
the relevant Lead Member for determination, following consultation with the Council’s 
Traffic Advisory Panel. Adhering to this procedure should not give rise to any legal 
implications. 
 
The Local Authorities’ Traffic Order Procedure Regulations 1996 provide that an 
order-making authority may modify an order in consequence of any objection or 
otherwise before it is made. If the modification constitutes a substantial change, the 
order-making authority shall give persons likely to be affected by the modifications 
the opportunity to make representations. In the context of the proposed modification 
to the order, it is not considered that the modification set out in the report constitutes 
a substantial change. 
 
If the decision is made to implement the proposals in this report, this should not give 
rise to any legal implications provided the works are carried out in accordance with 
the appropriate statutory requirements, including the Road Traffic Regulation Act 
1984. 

 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:   to be met from the Block 3 Highways Capital 
allocation of the Eccles devolved budget from the 2018/19 financial year. 

 
 
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: N/A 

 
 
HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

 
 
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: None 

 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: Judyta Szylejko         TEL NO: 0161 779 6097 

 
 
WARD TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: Barton 

Page 19



 

Page 20 of 20 
 

Ben Dolan 
Strategic Director, Place 

Page 20



Page 1 of 13

Part 1 - Open to the Public ITEM NO.

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE

TO LEAD MEMBER FOR PLANNING AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

LEAD MEMBER BRIEFING

14th May 2019

TITLE: City Of Salford (Hallsworth Road, Winton) (Prohibition of Waiting) Order 2019

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That the Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable Development consider the 
contents of this report and the deliberations of the Traffic Advisory Panel and make a 
decision to:

Overrule the objection and authorise the making of the Traffic Regulation Order in the 
form given in the Notice of Proposals and as set out at Appendix 1 hereto.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

A request has been received from Salford Environmental Services and approved by 
Eccles Highways Task Group to improve access issues on Hallsworth Road following 
complaints about parking on narrow part of Hallsworth Road towards a block of flats 
which prevents access by refuse collection vehicles. 

A traffic management scheme has been designed to introduce a ‘No Waiting at Any 
Time’ Traffic Regulation Order on Hallsworth Road to cover the extents considered 
appropriate by the Urban Vision engineers and Environmental Services as indicated 
on the attached legal schedule and a plan in Appendices 1 and 2.

The Traffic Regulation Order to introduce ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restriction was 
legally advertised on 20th November 2018 for 21 days, during the time two objections 
have been received in connection to the proposal.

Page 21

Agenda Item 3b



Page 2 of 13

Background

A request has been received from Salford Environmental Services and approved by 
Eccles Highways Task Group to improve access issues on Hallsworth Road following 
complaints about parking on narrow part of Hallsworth Road towards block of flats.

The inconsiderate parking prevents the refuse collection vehicle from accessing the 
block of flats to empty the bins. It is also preventing access for other large vehicles 
making deliveries, collections or emergencies at the block of flats which need access at 
all times.

A package of measures have been drawn up to address the problems, these consisted 
of the introduction of ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restriction on both sides of Hallsworth 
Road towards block of flats.

Therefore it was proposed to introduce ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restriction as outlined in 
the schedules and the attached plans in the Appendices 1 and 2.

The restrictions would prevent vehicles from parking on the access road which needs to 
be kept clear to enable bin wagons to drive through and empty the bins. 

A scheme to introduce the ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ was consulted upon by the Traffic 
Management Unit, local councillors and emergency services on 13th September 2018.

Following the consultation to the proposals, no objections were received.

The scheme was subject to formal legal advertising on 20th November 2018, for 21 days 
until 14th December 2018. Letters informing of the restrictions were sent out to the 
directly affected residents. During this period two objections have been received in 
connection to the proposal. 

The Objections

The first objection is reproduced at Appendix 3. The objection is made by local resident. 
The resident is objecting to the scheme because proposal would remove parking 
provision near to the gate to the house. The resident advised that due to his wife’s 
disability he needs a disabled parking bay close to the side of the property and 
suggested to convert the grass verge to hard standing to provide disabled bay (plan 
provided in Appendix 3).

The resident also submitted a request for a disabled parking bay in December 2018.

The second objection is reproduced at Appendix 4. The objection is made by a relative of 
a local resident. The objector pointed that there are only 5 parking places at the cul-de-
sac end for 8 apartments. The objector is concerned that agencies and deliveries need 
parking places.

The objector was advised that the road is too narrow to allow any parking and 
loading/unloading is permitted subject to not causing an obstruction. With regards to 
parking places the objector was advised that they should contact landlord which is City 
West. The objector decided to withdraw the objection.

Page 22



Page 3 of 13

Consideration of the Objections

If there are no parked vehicles on the narrow section of Hallsworth Road the waste 
collection vehicle can access the bin collection point and the bins are emptied. The only 
access road is narrow where there are often parked cars. The objector is usually parked 
there and despite Environmental Services requests to him to refrain from parking there 
he continues to do so.

Urban Vision Engineers met on site with refuse collection service wagon driver to 
establish suitable place for disabled parking bay. The driver advised that they need the 
corner and narrow section of Hallsworth Road to be clear from parking to enable them to 
reverse to the collection point and empty the bins.

Therefore a letter has been sent out confirming that a disabled bay could be provided in 
front of the house (Appendix 5). The objector advised that the bay was not at the location 
he would like and that if the bay was placed at the proposed location it would still cause 
issues for coaches coming down Hallsworth Road when a game is on at Salford City 
Roosters. 

Vehicle tracking indicates that a ‘Standard’ Rigid Bus (with overall length 12m) can get 
through if a disabled parking bay (1.8m) would be provided at the identified location.

The location proposed by the objector to provide an advisory disabled parking bay is not 
considered as feasible. The advisory disabled parking bay would require:

- The grass verge to be converted to hard standing,
- The footway narrowing to suit minimum width of a bay (however it is not 

recommended to narrow footway any further),
- Extension of the bay to provide suitable access and egress from the bay,
- Potential relocation of street lighting column,
- Potential excavation of roots.

It should be noted that most of houses on Hallsworth Road have driveways or facility to 
have off street parking provision. There is a possibility to find on-street parking places. 

Photos from a site visit are reproduced in Appendix 6.

Blue Badge holders can park on double yellow lines, providing they do not cause an 
obstruction and correctly display their blue badge for up to 3 hours. Also picking up and 
dropping off is allowed from double yellow lines subject to not causing an obstruction.

The Equality Act 2010

The objection to the proposal may engage provisions of the Equality Act 2010.  In the 
exercise of a public function that is not a 'service to the public', a public authority must 
make reasonable adjustments and not do anything that constitutes discrimination, 
harassment or victimisation.  Public functions not involving a service to the public include 
'the provision of public highways'.  

Page 23



Page 4 of 13

Discrimination may be 'direct or indirect'.  Indirect discrimination occurs where a person 
applies a provision, criterion or practice which although applied to everyone, puts one 
group of persons with a protected characteristic at a particular disadvantage.  Indirect 
discrimination can be lawful if shown to be 'a proportionate means of achieving a 
legitimate aim'.  Councils are also subject to the general Public Sector Equality Duty.  

Officers have offered an accommodation around the need for easy access from the car 
to the home through the disabled bay at the front.  This appears to be less preferable to 
the objector, but in terms of accommodation seems reasonable.  

Therefore, officers recommend that the ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restrictions should be 
introduced as advertised to help refuse collection vehicles emptying the bins as well as 
improving access for other large vehicles making deliveries, collections or emergencies 
at the block of flats.

The advisory on street disabled parking bay could be introduced separately if the 
objector follows the procedure sent to him on 11th January 2019 and in the letter 
reproduced in Appendix 5.

Deliberations of the Traffic Advisory Panel

The objection was considered at a meeting of the Traffic Advisory Panel on 4th April 
2019. The objector was informed about the meeting however could not attend. Having 
considered the Report, the Traffic Advisory Panel decided to support the 
recommendation to introduce the Order in its original form.

Recommendation

That the Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable Development consider the contents 
of this report and the deliberations of the Traffic Advisory Panel and make a decision to 
overrule the objection and authorise the making of the Traffic Regulation Order in the 
form given in the Notice of Proposals and as set out at Appendix 1 hereto.

Appendix:

1. TRO schedule as advertised
2. Plan of affected area as advertised
3. Objection 1
4. Objection 2
5. Letter sent to the objector
6. Photos from site visit

Page 24



Page 5 of 13

APPENDIX 1 – TRO SCHEDULE AS ADVERTISED

PROPOSAL:

Introduction of:

‘No Waiting at Any Time’ Restriction

Hallsworth Road

West side from the extended southern kerbline of Hallsworth Road to 
the cul-de-sac for a distance of 41 metres in a southerly direction.

East side from the extended southern kerbline of Hallsworth Road to 
the back of the footway for a distance of 37 metres in a southerly 
direction.

South side from the extended eastern kerbline of Hallsworth Road for a 
distance of 5 metres in an easterly direction.

Page 25



Page 6 of 13

APPENDIX 2 – PLAN OF AFFECTED AREA AS ADVERTISED

P
age 26



Page 7 of 13

APPENDIX 3 – OBJECTION 1

Objection received by e-mail on 30.11.2018

Could you please send me the Facts of why they are putting a parking order […on…] 
Hallsworth Road and not any were else down the road this seems to be affecting me 
and my wife only My wife is disabled and requires to access our car as near to our 
home as possible which is on this part of Hallsworth Road I have asked Councillor 
Morris a few times for a Disabled cut in to be put in just for use which is doable very 
easy but nothing as been done So if they are coming with there Double Yellow lines 
they need to put the Disabled Bay into there costings 

Thanking You […]

Sent this Yesterday but no reply

Page 27



Page 8 of 13

Reply by e-mail on 19.12.2018

Good Morning,

Thank you for your e-mail and sorry for late reply. We received your disabled bay 
application and we need some further investigation to be done on site with regards to 
that bay and proposed double yellows.

I will get back to you as soon as I can.

Sorry for inconvenience.

Page 28



Page 9 of 13

APPENDIX 4 – OBJECTION 2

Objection received by e-mail on 17.12.2018

I am receipt of your letter regarding the proposal of the no waiting restriction on 
Hallsworth Road, Peel Green, Eccles.

Whilst I can understand the restriction being made in principle, I think it should be 
noted that there are only 5 car parking places possible for the residents who live in 
the 2 blocks of flats at the end of Hallsworth Road.

As there are 8 flats in total, I think the provision for 8 vehicles parking should be 
made before the roadside restriction is put into force. Whilst not everyone may own a 
car in the flats some of the occupants often receive visitors from Help Agencies and 
from relatives. In fact, I am a relative of one of the relatives who lives in the block and 
I visit him 3 or 4 times a week and stay for long periods at times. This relative of mine 
also receives visits from Help Agencies, food delivering service companies and 
supermarket delivery services, therefore it is essential adequate parking is available 
for these services.

I hope you forward these points to whoever is in control of both the car park at the 
end of Hallsworth Road and also the decision makers who are proposing the Parking 
Restrictions.

Thank you and Regards

Reply by e-mail on 18.12.2018

Good Morning,

Thank you for your e-mail.

The restrictions are proposed due to access difficulties for bin wagons and 
emergency vehicles. The road towards blocks of flats is too narrow to allow any 
parking, hence the ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restriction is proposed.

With regards to the additional parking places you should contact land controller which 
is City West. 

Please be advised that loading and unloading is permitted from the restrictions 
subject to not cause the obstruction.

In terms of the above do you wish to withdraw or maintain your objection to the 
proposed scheme?

If you have any more questions please let me know.

Page 29



Page 10 of 13

27.12.2018

Thanks for your reply. 

We can appreciate the reasons you give for the parking restrictions and accept that 
the issue regarding car parking is a matter for City West. We will therefore will 
remove our initial objection to this plan.

Page 30



Page 11 of 13

APPENDIX 5 – LETTER SENT TO THE OBJECTOR

Page 31



Page 12 of 13

APPENDIX 6 – PHOTOS FROM SITE VISIT

Car parked at the above location is preventing bin wagon to pass through.

Car parked at the above location shows where the advisory disabled parking bay 
could be provided.

Page 32



Page 13 of 13

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  Local Transport Plan

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:
N/A

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: 
Implementation of the restrictions would improve access for bin wagons and 
emergency vehicles.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Paul Haley
It is necessary to consider the provisions of the Equality Act 2010 in relation to the 
objection.  

For the Equality Impact Assessment - refer the consideration given in the body of the 
report.

Where objections are received by the Council following the advertisement of 
proposals, the decision regarding the implementation of the proposals is delegated to 
the relevant Lead Member for determination, following consultation with the Council’s 
Traffic Advisory Panel.  Adhering to this procedure should not give rise to any legal 
implications. 

The decision to implement the proposals in this report, should not give rise to any 
legal implications provided the works are carried out in accordance with the 
appropriate statutory requirements set out in the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: The costs will be met from the Eccles Highways 
Devolved Budget Capital for year 2018-2019 as approved in Delegated Decision 
Notice on 31.01.2019.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Natalia Woszczyk x2220
Urban Vision Partnership was procured through a fully compliant OJEU process.  The 
services outlined within the report are delivered under the exclusivity agreement in 
line with the Council’s contractual standing orders.

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: None

CONTACT OFFICER: Judyta Szylejko       TEL NO: 0161 779 6097
WARD TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: Winton

Ben Dolan
Strategic Director, Place

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Part 1 - Open to the Public ITEM NO.

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE

TO THE LEAD MEMBER FOR STRATEGIC PLANNING

LEAD MEMBERS BRIEFING

14th MAY 2019

TITLE: Hankinson Way/Rossall Way Area, Pendleton - SBNI – TRO 2232

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

That the Lead Member for Strategic Planning consider the contents of this report and 
the deliberations of the Traffic Advisory Panel and make a decision to:

Consider the objections and introduce amendments to the scheme as detailed in this 
report.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

Salford City Council in conjunction with Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM) has 
developed a series of measures across Salford and Bolton (SBNI) to make the 
transport network more efficient. It aims to make travel easier for everyone, including 
public transport users, drivers, pedestrians and cyclists. Bus passengers in particular 
will see quicker, more reliable journey times.

The improvements will also help encourage economic growth by providing better 
access to employment opportunities, health, education, retail and leisure facilities.

Funding for the improvements has been supported by Central Government through 
the Greater Manchester Growth Deal. 

A scheme has been identified for the Salford Shopping Centre area, bounded by 
Hankinson Way, Rossall Way and Pendleton Way in Pendleton to improve the 
highway infrastructure, layout and road safety for buses, general traffic, cyclists and 
pedestrians.

This scheme seeks to introduce measures such as improved bus stop arrangements, 
wider footways and improved crossing facilities for pedestrians and a 20mph Speed 

Page 35

Agenda Item 3c



2

Limit with associated traffic calming measures to improve road safety in the 
Hankinson Way, Rossall Way area.

As part of the scheme a restricted parking zone, except for parking in marked bays 
will be provided, with taxi rank and loading bays provided to service facilities in the 
area.

The Speed Limit Order (SLO) to introduce the 20mph Speed Limit Zone was 
advertised on the 21st February 2019 for a period of 24 days and received one 
objection. (Objector 1)

The Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) to introduce the waiting restrictions was 
advertised on the 21st February 2019 for a period of 24 days and received one 
objection.  (Objector 2) 
 
This matter was considered at the Traffic Advisory Panel on 4th April 2019 and one 
objector attended and addressed the panel.

Background

Pendleton Shopping Centre located adjacent to Hankinson Way, Rossall Way and 
Pendleton Way is one of the most popular areas for shopping in Salford, as well as 
being a busy bus interchange which is used by many services to access a variety of 
destinations within Salford and Greater Manchester more widely.

Complaints have been received that pedestrians find access to/from and within the 
area difficult especially crossing Hankinson Way to access the shops and 
businesses. This isn’t helped by the large quantity of pedestrian guardrail which acts 
as a barrier between the shopping area, the surrounding residential areas and car 
parks. The current layout is unattractive to pedestrians and feels unsafe, which 
thereby discourages people from visiting the shopping area as well as using the 
extensive bus services.

Buses are also having difficulty, in particularly accessing the many bus stops in the 
area, which can lead to delays and potential issues with punctuality and reliability.

In order to improve road safety and access for pedestrians to encourage a greater 
use of the nearby shopping and business facilities and bus services it is proposed to 
implement a scheme and associated Traffic Regulation Orders.

These include a 20mph speed limit, traffic calming measures (Flat topped road 
humps) and updated waiting and loading restrictions to reflect the new layout.

The existing bus lanes on Hankinson Way will be removed as part of the scheme, to 
enable the provision of wider footways and improved bus waiting facilities to be 
provided. Following analysis, the removal of the bus lanes in the area is not 
anticipated to have an adverse effect on bus services in the area.

Page 36



3

As part of the proposals it is proposed to formalise the one way taxi rank/loading bay 
on the service road adjacent to Rossall Way by providing a Traffic Regulation Order 
to reflect the current operation.

The Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) to introduce the waiting restrictions was 
advertised on the 21st February 2019 for a period of 24 days and received one 
objection, objector 1.   

The Speed Limit Order (SLO) to introduce the 20mph Speed Limit Zone was 
advertised on the 21st February 2019 for a period of 24 days and received one 
objection, objector 2. 

This matter was considered at the Traffic Advisory Panel on 4th April 2019 and one 
objector attended and addressed the panel.

Proposals 

Introduction of:

Restricted Parking Zone- No waiting no loading except in signed bays 
(Including no parking on footways.)

Road Name Side Schedule
Hankinson Way Both sides From a point 25 metres 

south west from its 
junction with A576 
roundabout to its junction 
with the Heywood 
Way/Churchill Way 
roundabout.

Rossall Way Both sides For its full length

Pendleton Way Both sides From a point 25 metres 
south west from its 
junction with A576 
roundabout to its junction 
with the entrance to 
Pendleton Shopping City 
Car Park. 

Loganberry Avenue Both sides  For its full length

Heywood Way/Churchill 
Way Roundabout

Both sides For its full length

Taxi Rank – 24 hours
Road Name Side Schedule
Hankinson Way North west side From a point 44 metres 

south west from the 
extended south western 

Page 37



4

kerbline of Loganberry 
Avenue in a south 
westerly direction for a 
distance of 16 metres.

Taxi Rank /Loading Bay – Taxi Rank 10am – 5pm, loading Bay 5pm-10am
Road Name Side Schedule
Rossall Way Service Road South side In the parallel service road 

adjacent to the south west 
side of Rossall Way from 
point 83 metres from the 
junction with Rossall way 
with Hankinson Way in a 
north westerly direction for 
a distance of 50 metres.

Loading Bay – 24 hours
Road Name Side Schedule
Hankinson Way North west side From a point 67 metres 

north east from the 
extended north eastern 
kerbline of Loganberry 
Avenue in a north easterly 
direction for a distance of 
34 metres.

One Way Street
Road Name Side Schedule
Rossall Way Service Road In a north westerly 

direction
The parallel service road 
adjacent to the south west 
side of Rossall Way from a 
point 83 metres from the 
junction of  Rossall Way 
with Hankinson Way in a 
north westerly direction for  
50 metres.

20MPH SPEED LIMIT ZONE
Rossall Way Full length
Hankinson Way Full length
Pendleton Way Full length including service road spur
Loganberry Avenue Full length

Revocations – Pendleton TRO

Order Revocation TRO Reference
THE CITY OF SALFORD 
(HANKINSON WAY, SALFORD 

In its entirety 913

Page 38



5

6)(INTRODUCTION OF NEW 
PROHIBITION OF WAITING 
AND LOADING/UNLOADING 
BAN) ORDER 1995
CITY OF SALFORD (CENTRAL 
AREA)(RESTRICTION OF 
WAITING)ORDER 1970

Schedule

Hankinson Way – west 
side from Heywood Way to 
Market Way

Hankinson Way – east 
side for its whole length

Rossall Way – on both 
sides for its whole length

W188

THE CITY OF 
SALFORD(HANKINSON WAY, 
SALFORD)(PROHIBITION OF 
WAITING)(PEAK HOUR 
LOADING/UNLOADING 
RESTRICTIONS) AND 
(INTRODUCTION OF A BUS 
STOP CLEARWAY) ORDER 
2000

In its entirety 1127

THE CITY OF 
SALFORD(HANKINSON WAY, 
SALFORD)(REVOCATION OF 
RESERVED BUS LANE ORDER 
AND LOADING RESTRICTION 
AND INTRODUCTION OF 24 
HOUR BUS ONLY 
LANE)ORDER 2000

In its entirety 1122

THE CITY OF SALFORD 
(REVOCATION AND 
ESTABISHMENT OF HACKNEY 
CARRIAGE STANDS AND 
PROHIBITION OF STOPPING 
ON HACKNEY CARRIAGE 
STANDS) ORDER 2003

Schedule 2

Rossall Way – Rossall 
Way, Salford, south west 
side from a point 31 
metres north west of the 
north westerly kerbline of 
Hankinson Way in a north 
westerly direction for a 
distance of 43 metres.

Schedule 10

Rossall Way, Salford, 
south west side from a 
point 31 metres north west 
of the north westerly 
kerbline of Hankinson Way 

1193

Page 39



6

in a north westerly 
direction for a distance of 
43 metres.  

 

THE CITY OF 
SALFORD(HANKINSON WAY, 
SALFORD)(REVOCATION OF 
RESERVED BUS LANE ORDER 
AND LOADING RESTRICTION 
AND INTRODUCTION OF 24 
HOUR BUS ONLY LANE) 
ORDER 2000

In its entirety 1130

SALFORD CITY COUNCIL 
(ROSSALL WAY, 
SALFORD)(EXTENSION OF 
EXISTING HACKNEY 
CARRIAGE STAND) ORDER 
2011

In its entirety 1400

SALFORD CITY COUNCIL 
(ROSSALL WAY, 
WALKDEN)(INTRODUCTION 
OF GOODS VEHICLE LOADING 
ONLY)ORDER 2013

In its entirety 1682

SALFORD CITY 
COUNCIL(ROSSALL WAY AND 
PENDLETON WAY, SALFORD) 
(REVOCATION AND 
ESTABLISHMENT OF 
HACKNEY CARRIAGE STANDS 
AND PROHIBITION OF 
STOPPING ON A HACKNEY 
CARRIAGE STAND) ORDER 
2013

In its entirety 1679

Consideration of Objections

The following table summarises the general points raised by the objector to the 
20mph Speed limit Zone and provides a response to the points raised: 

OBJECTION RESPONSE

Objector 1

20mph zones are being introduced on 
ideological reasons rather than on 

A large number of evaluation studies 
have demonstrated a link between the 

Page 40



7

evidence of risks for instance 
accidents

There is no evidence of 20mph Speed 
Limit Zones being effective negligible 
reduction in accidents and 
compliance is low.

introduction of 20mph zones and a 
subsequent reduction in casualties. The 
size of the reductions and the 
consistency of results over a wide 
number of areas are further evidence for 
this link.

There is similarly strong evidence 
showing the benefits of traffic calming 
measures, which are used in 20mph 
zones.

As well as road safety benefits, it is 
important to highlight the contribution that 
20mph zones can have in encouraging 
more physical activity, such as walking 
and cycling, by contributing towards a 
safer environment.

An examination of the collision record for 
the Hankinson Way/Rossall Way area in 
Pendleton shows that although there isn’t 
a major accident problem in the area, 
there have been 26 reported injury 
accidents since 2004 of which 6 involved 
pedestrians, with 4 being classified as 
serious. 

It is considered that the proposed 
measures including traffic calming and 
20mph speed limit zone will contribute 
towards reducing the level and severity 
of collisions in the area particular in 
relation to pedestrians.  This is 
particularly relevant considering that the 
proposed scheme will improve access for 
pedestrians in the area which will most 
likely lead to a greater number of 
pedestrians using the network. 

There are differing results from the 
introduction of 20mph Zones, regarding 
the reduction in the level of reported 
collisions. However, with schemes like 
this where physical features such as 
traffic calming measures are introduced, 
there is generally a reduction in traffic 
speeds, and hence a reduction in the 
number and severity of collisions and 
casualties.

Page 41



8

Low compliance of the proposed 
20mph speed limit zone encourages 
less respect of the law.

Monies used on the scheme could be 
used on other more worthy and 
effective measures.

The roads being treated are heavily 
used by buses, and it is considered 
that the scheme will delay journey 
times

This 20mph speed limit zone includes 
traffic calming measures, flat top road 
humps, in addition to the proposed 
narrowing of the carriageway as part of 
the new scheme will also ensure that this 
20mph speed limit zone is self-enforcing.

The funding for this scheme was from the 
Central Government Local Growth Deal 
fund which was has been specifically 
allocated to transport schemes. 

This programme involves a series of road 
improvements across Salford and Bolton 
to make the local transport network more 
efficient.

It aims to make travel easier for 
everyone, including public transport 
users, drivers, pedestrians and cyclists. 
Bus passengers will see shorter, more 
reliable journey times.

The improvements will also help 
encourage economic growth by providing 
better access to employment 
opportunities, and health, education, 
retail and leisure facilities.

The introduction of a 20mph speed limit 
is not expected to have a significant 
impact on bus journey times, particularly 
as the new speed limit would only apply 
to a relatively small area. Given that 
buses using Hankinson Way and/or 
Rossall Way are likely to be stopping to 
serve one of the bus stops, and taking 
into account the road layout and typical 
amount of roadside activity in this 
location, lower speeds for buses are 
likely to be ‘self-enforced’ already.

Objector 2

Issues were raised concerning the lack of 
facilities for Private Hire vehicles in the 
Hankinson Way/Rossall Way area close 
to the shops and facilities. It was 
mentioned that there was a phone which 

The situation for dropping off/picking up 
passengers on Rossall Way remains as it 
is, that being that the area adjacent to 
the Post Office/shops is taken up by a 
taxi rank and bus stop clearways, which 

Page 42



9

people could use to call private hire 
vehicles but no place for them to drop 
off/pick up passengers

Can use the nearby car parks, but that is 
not where customers wish to be dropped 
off. It was mentioned that the Post Office 
is a particular popular destination for 
customers. This would be an issue 
especially for elderly customers.

Mentioned that there had been a process 
to identify areas for private hire vehicles 
to drop off and pick up passengers and 
that facilities were provided for buses, 
taxis, but not private hire vehicles.

would not permit it. However, there are 
car parks on Rossall Way which could be 
used for boarding/alighting passengers. 

On Hankinson Way, the proposals result 
in bus stop clearways covering the main 
extents, although there is a short 
proposed taxi rank. There is a loading 
bay for goods vehicles adjacent to the 
shops on Hankinson Way. To provide a 
drop off and pick up area for Private Hire 
vehicles on Hankinson Way it is 
suggested that this loading bay be 
amended to enable all vehicles to load 
and unload within this bay.

The nearby Tesco car park has a facility 
whereby private hire vehicles can drop 
off/pick up passengers.
It is considered that the car park, access 
from Pendleton Way is relatively close to 
the Post Office and the nearby shops.

As part of the detailed design process a 
meeting was arranged with 
representatives of the Private Hire trade. 
The intention was to provide areas within 
the car parks for this purpose, however 
as the design progressed, the availability 
of this space was withdrawn by the land 
owner. Unfortunately it is not possible to 
provide any additional areas on the 
highway for picking up/dropping off close 
to the shops as there isn’t adequate 
space for this and for the other demands 
in the area. However the suggested 
amendments, enabling all vehicles to use 
the Loading Bay on Hankinson Way to 
load and unload, which includes 
passengers.

All the letters\Emails are attached to this report

Deliberations of the Traffic Advisory Panel

The matter was considered at a meeting on the 4th April 2019. The objectors were 
invited to attend the meeting, and a representative of the Private Hire Trade 
attended, addressed the Panel and requested that the proposals include drop off and 
pick up areas for Private Hire vehicles. 

The matter was carefully considered including all the points raised by the objector.

Page 43



10

Recommendation

It is recommended, following consideration of the objections received, that the 
scheme be introduced, as Private Hire drop off and pick up can take place from 
within the loading bay on Hankinson Way and the 20 mph speed limit will be 
complemented by speed reducing features to assist in maintaining lower vehicle 
speeds in and around the shopping area. 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  Local Transport Plan

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 

The proposed improvements including 20mph speed limit will make the highway 
network and surrounding area more accessible for all road users.

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: 

None

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: 

Not applicable 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 

The scheme is being promoted by Transport for Greater Manchester (“TfGM”) on 
behalf of Greater Manchester Combined Authority (“GMCA”), in association with 
Salford City and Bolton Councils as part of the Greater Manchester Growth and 
Reform Deal therefore the scheme delivery costs will be externally funded by GMCA.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: 
Not applicable 

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: None.

CONTACT OFFICER: Steven Ashton TEL NO: 0161 779 4912 

Page 44



11

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES:  Langworthy

Ben Dolan
Strategic Director, Place

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



1

   Part 1 - Open to the Public ITEM NO.

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE

TO LEAD MEMBER FOR PLANNING AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
ON 13th MAY 2019

TITLE:  THE HIGHWAY DRAINAGE INVESTMENT PROGRAMME (DIP) -
CAPITAL BUDGET 2019/20 AND THE CULVERT INVESTMENT    
PROGRAMME (CIP) CAPITAL BUDGET 2019/20

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That the Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable Development approves 
the proposed programme of work for the Highway Drainage Investment 
Programme (DIP) and the Culvert Investment Programme (CIP) for 2019/20 
as outlined in the report.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

The financial provision for the Highway Drainage Investment Programme for 
20189/20 and the Culvert Investment Programme for 2019/20 has been 
confirmed as £275,000 (£200,000 and £75,000 respectively).  The budget 
apportionments given in the report and detailed within the background 
document outline the 2019/20 scheme proposals as part of the ongoing rolling 
programme of drainage repair works.  The works identified for inclusion within 
the Culvert Investment Programme are also outlined in the report.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 

KEY DECISION: No

Page 47

Agenda Item 3e



2

DETAILS:

1. The Highway Drainage Investment Programme

1.1 Initial surveys and investigations into the condition of the highway drainage 
infrastructure identified many defective gullies and connections. The cause of 
many of these defects is attributed to damaged pipe work, which over time has 
allowed water to erode the carriageway foundation and cause failures. The 
repairs required usually consist of a small excavation to expose and repair the 
damaged sections of pipe work followed by backfill and reinstatement.  

1.2 To date 5,814 of these defects have been addressed as summarised below in      
Table 1

Neighbourhood

Blocked 
gullies 
cleared with 
concentrated 
jetting & 
cleansing

Number of 
covers lifted 
and greased 
following 
concentrated 
effort.

Gully 
Connection 
Repairs

New 
Gully 
Pots 
installed

New 
Gully 
Covers 
installed

General 
Drainage 
Repairs Totals

Irlam & 
Cadishead 377 75 70 25 60 39 646
Claremont & 
Weaste 190 165 30 87 135 35 642

Swinton 226 179 60 375 57 51 948
Ordsall & 
Langworthy 281 100 41 152 75 38 687

East Salford 143 128 57 188 159 13* 688
Walkden & Little 
Hulton 295 126 85 268 54 72 900
Worsley & 
Boothstown 228 91 48 270 45 51 733

Eccles 205 122 30 66 83 33 539
 Unscheduled 
(all 
Neighbourhoods)      31 31
       Total 5,814

Table 1 – Summary of gully and connection repairs completed to March 2019

* figure does not include the additional Broughton Flood Zone- 44 90 litre pots installed at 
Broughton Lane

Page 48



3

1.3 The capital funding allocation for highway drainage structural maintenance      
during 2019/20 has been confirmed as £200,000. 

Work Element (£) Total (£)

Drainage Investment Programme:
Direct Works Cost 139,858.00

Depot Overheads (17.55)* 24,545.08 164,403.08
Depot Profit (8.15%) 13,398.85 177,801.93

Total Construction Costs 177,801.93

                                                      Design Fee (8%) 14,224.15 14,224.15
                                               Supervision Fee (0%)

                              Professional Fees 14,224.15

Scheme Delivery Cost and Fees 192,026.08

Profit Difference (13%-8.15%) depot works costs 0.0485 7,973.55

Total Budget for programme £199,999.63
Table 2 – proposed apportionment of DIP allocation.

*Please note that the specified overhead figures are provisional percentages and are 
subject to final approval from Salford City Council

1.4 The rolling programme of repairs will continue during 2019/20 to reduce the 
identified backlog of repairs. Details are as shown in Table 3 below.  The 
programme has been prioritised using a risk-based approach to ensure that 
the worst areas of flooding and structural defects are addressed first. The 
programme has been identified in response to the following criteria:

 where flooding affects, or is likely to affect property;

 locations adjacent to well used footways;

 where standing water is at critical turning or braking points; and

 where flooding is frequent and has been persistent for some years.

Page 49



4

1.5      The proposed programme of work is highlighted in Table 3a and 3b below:

Neighbourhood General Highway Drainage Repairs

Claremont & Weaste 0

East Salford 10

Eccles 19

Irlam & Cadishead 0

Ordsall & Langworthy 0

Swinton 27

Walkden & Little Hulton 24

Worsley & Boothstown 0

Grand Total 80

Table 3a works carried over from 2018/19

Neighbourhood General Highway Drainage Repairs

Claremont & Weaste 11

East Salford 6

Eccles 13

Irlam & Cadishead 9

Ordsall & Langworthy 16

Swinton 20

Walkden & Little Hulton 12

Worsley & Boothstown 13

Grand Total 100

Table 3b - Proposed Programme of Works 2019/20

1.6 An element of the works funding will be utilised to assess the condition of the 
brickwork supporting gully grates and frames at selected locations on the 
classified road network.  The provision of grates with a more suitable bar 
pattern will have the added benefit of improving road safety for both motorists 
and cyclists.

1.7 As the Drainage Improvement Programme (DIP) continues, works will be 
extended to improve the integrity of collector systems by de-silting and 
improving capacity where possible.

1.8 A further reserve will be held in the account to address any unforeseen 
drainage issues that may occur within the 2019/20 financial year.  

Page 50



5

2. The Highway Culvert Investment Programme

2.1 The capital allocation for highway culvert structural maintenance during 
2019/20 has been confirmed as £75,000.

2.2 Culverted watercourses are surface watercourses that have been piped, 
usually under highways, driveways or housing developments.  Where a culvert 
passes under an adopted highway, the responsibility for its maintenance lies 
with Salford City Council.

2.3 Over the last five years a series of surveys have been undertaken so as to 
establish the structural condition of the culverts within the remit of Salford City 
Council. The derived condition indices have assisted in identifying locations 
where pro-active repairs are recommended in order to reduce the future 
likelihood of collapses, blockages and localised flooding. This is especially the 
case where capacity has been restricted by excessive silting or where “flag 
topped” culverts were in evidence as this type of construction is known to be 
prone to collapse without warning and has previously placed a heavy burden 
on the revenue account.

2.4 A list of priority repairs has been compiled, largely determined by the condition 
indices derived from the surveys, but also weighted to take into account the 
location, likelihood of flooding incidents and previous performance history.  It is 
proposed that the following work outlined in Tables 4 and 5 below, be carried 
out during 2019/20.

Ward Water Course Works Required

Various Various Culvert Safety, Access improvement, Flood 
prevention and CCTV survey works

           
Table 4 - Proposed Programme of Culvert Safety/Access Improvement Works will be 
presented through the Lead Member briefing notes

Page 51



6

2.5 A summary of estimated costs is shown below in Table 5 below.

Scheme (£) Total (£)
Culvert Safety/Access Improvement Works, Flood Prevention and 
CCTV survey Works

Direct Works Cost 52.447.00
Depot Overheads (17.55%)* 9,204.45 61651.45

Depot Profit (8.15%) 5,024.59 66,676.04

Total Construction Costs 66,676.04

                                                                                     Design Fee (8%) 5,334.08 5,334.08
                                                                               Supervision Fee (0%)

                                                                  Professional Fees 5,334.08

Scheme Delivery Cost and Fees 72,010.12

Profit Difference (13%-8.15%) depot works costs 0.0485 2,990.10

Total Budget for programme £75,000.22
Table 5 - proposed apportionment of CIP allocation 2019/20

*Please note that the specified overhead figures are provisional percentages and are 
subject to final approval from Salford City Council

2.7 Schemes and budget estimates are being prepared using currently available 
survey data. Identified schemes will be prioritised for inclusion in the 
programme of work, and will be included in the Highway Investment 
Programme / Drainage Investment Programme briefing note.

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 
Enhancing Life in Salford, Think Efficiency, Improving the Environment

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:

There are no adverse implications relating to equality issues. A well 
maintained highway drainage system makes it easier for less able bodied and 
visually impaired people, to move around the City.  The scheme proposals as 
outlined have been made in an attempt to ensure the continued safe 
movement of the travelling public. A community equality impact assessment 
has been completed and concludes that the proposals will have a positive 
impact on communities.

Page 52



7

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: 

Medium – It is important that the existing highway drainage infrastructure 
improvements continue in order to ensure that surface flooding is minimised 
and that the capacity of existing systems is maximised, especially in view of 
the recent weather conditions that have been experienced within the City.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Azra Furheen, Legal Services 0161 219 6323 

Date 23rd April 2019

The Council as highway authority has a number of statutory duties and powers 
in relation to flooding matters on highways maintainable at the public expense. 
The Highway Authority must take such care in all the circumstances as is 
reasonably required to ensure that the highway is not dangerous for traffic and 
for the public. On highways liable to flooding to a considerable depth, the 
authority has a duty to provide graduated posts or stones indicating the depth 
of water covering the highway where it is considered necessary or desirable. 
The Council also has a duty to remove obstructions arising from snow, from 
falling down of banks/landslides on the side of the highway, or from any other 
cause. 

The Council has undertaken recent surveys and investigation of the highways 
drainage systems and identified a prioritised programme of repairs to ensure 
that the worst areas of flooding and structural defects are addressed first. 
Similarly the culverts for which it is responsible have undergone surveys 
leading to prioritised repairs according to the future likelihood of collapses, 
blockages, and flooding, whilst considering also location and previous history.

The proposals in the report for DIP and CIP will assist the Council in 
complying with these duties and strengthen the Council’s position in 
establishing a defence to any associated potential 3rd party claims by 
demonstrating that there is in place a sufficiently robust regime to undertake 
structural repairs and maintenance of highways and culvert drainage 
schemes. 

Depending on the value of the works to be undertaken as part of the DIP 
and/or CIP, Urban Vision may be instructed to carry out such works under the 
terms of the Development Services Partnering Agreement, or Council may 
appoint contractors following a mini competition exercise from its framework 
agreement for Civil and Highways Engineering. Should the value of any such 
works exceed £100,000, a separate report will need to be presented to 
Procurement Board for decision. 

. 

Page 53



8

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Alison Woods, Finance Officer, (Capital), 
Tel. 925 1135 

Date: 23rd April 2019

There is sufficient funding within the approved 2019/20 Highways Capital 
Investment programme, to fund the £200,000 works identified for the Drainage 
Improvement Programme and the £75,000 works identified for the Culvert 
Improvement Programme.

All expenditure should be closely monitored to ensure that these schemes are 
delivered within the allocated resources.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  Christine Flisk, Category Manager 
Level 2 

Date 23rd April 2019

Urban Vision Partnership was procured through a fully compliant OJEU 
procurement process and is in contract with the council until 2020. The 
exclusivity agreement with Urban Vision Partnership for delivering Highway 
services is in place to deliver works to under the DSPA agreement to a value 
of £140k.  A variation to the DSPA can be made with agreement by both 
parties.   All works above the agreed threshold will be procured in line with 
CSO’s from February 2020.  The procurement team will work closely with UV 
and will endeavour to facilitate a smooth transition back into the council.  
Procurement engagement: None

HR IMPLICATIONS: There are no HR implications associated with this report

 
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: Urban Vision Partnership Limited 

CONTACT OFFICER:  Steve Mangan TEL NO: 0161 603 4034

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: All wards 

Page 54



 1

   Part 1 - Open to the Public 
 

 

 
 

 
REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE 

 
 

 
TO THE LEAD MEMBER FOR PLANNING AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 

13th MAY 2019 
 

 
TITLE:  THE HIGHWAY CRASH BARRIER INVESTMENT PROGRAMME (CBIP) - 

CAPITAL BUDGET 2019/20 
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

That the Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable Development approves 
the Highway Crash Barrier Investment Programme (CBIP) capital budget 
proposals for 2019/20 as outlined in the report. 
 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 

The provision for the Highway Crash Barrier Investment Programme for 
2019/20 has been confirmed as £150,000.  The budget apportionments 
detailed in the report outline the 2019/20 scheme proposals, which form part 
of an ongoing rolling programme of structural inspection and repair works.   
 

 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 
 

Appendix A - A3 plan indicating the highway crash barrier locations in Salford 

 
 
KEY DECISION: No

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 55

Agenda Item 3f



 2

DETAILS: 
 
 
1.  The Highway Crash Barrier Investment Programme 

 
1.1 The capital funding allocation for highway crash barrier maintenance during 

2019/20 has been confirmed as £150,000. 

 

1.2  Section 39 of the Road Traffic Act 1988 places a statutory duty on local 
authorities to carry out, amongst other things, a programme of measures 
designed to promote road safety, studies of accidents arising out of use of 
vehicles and to enact appropriate measures to prevent and reduce the 
possibility of such accidents.  The Traffic Signs Regulations and General 
Directions 2016, The Requirements for Road Restraint Systems (Vehicle and 
Pedestrian) and the recommendations within Well Maintained Highways; Code 
of Practice for Highway Maintenance Management set out the prescribed 
standards placed on the Authority to ensure that the crash barriers provided 
are all of the required standard and are maintained to a safe and adequate 
condition. 

 
1.3 During 2007 the length and location of all highway related crash barriers within 

Salford was ascertained as part of an adopted highway asset valuation 
exercise outlined in the ‘Guidance Document for Highway Infrastructure Asset 
Valuation’ produced by the County Surveyors Society / TAG Asset 
Management Working Group.  This valuation is currently used to support the 
mandatory ‘Whole of Government Accounts Process (WGA)’ 

 
1.4 As part of this ongoing process the following data is being collated. 
 

• Inventory – location, length, height, type of fence or barrier, etc 
• Integrity – based on structural / condition assessment by a specialised 

contractor 
• Site classification – each site to be classified in terms of risk (hazards, 

speed of traffic, frequency and severity of accidents, type and condition of 
fence or barrier. 

• Tensioning bolts of steel tensioned crash barrier should be checked and 
reset to correct torque every 2 years in conjunction with a defined 
programme of routine inspection and repair. 

 
1.5 Regular visual inspection of the highway crash barriers is undertaken as part 

of a routine safety inspection process, and noted faults and defects are 
identified for appropriate repairs. 

 
1.6 The crash barrier improvement programme seeks to: 

 
• Identify barriers that have reached the end of their useful service life 
 

Page 56



 3

• Identify barriers that have sustained accident damage 
 
• Identify barriers showing signs of corrosion and rust due to lack of timely 

maintenance 
 
• Identify barriers that are non-compliant with current design standards 
 
• Establish a lifecycle position and future costs for maintenance and repair 

 
1.7 During 2019/20 it is proposed to carry out the works identified in Table 1 

below. 
 

  
 Type of Repair Estimated Cost Location  
 

 

 
A6/ A580-Road Restraint Barrier System 
Replacement 
 

“Armco barrier” and support 
struts replacement £125,000 

 

 
Miscellaneous Structural Repairs 
 

“Armco barrier” and support 
struts replacement 

£25,000 

  
 

Total – 2019/20   
 

  
 

£150,000 

Table 1 – Crash Barrier Investment Proposals 2019/20 
 
 
1.8 A breakdown of the cost of these proposed works is as shown in Table 2 

below. 
 

Work Element  (£) Total (£)  
A6/A580 Road Restraint Barrier System 
Replacement 

  

Direct Works Cost  87,412.00 
Depot Overheads (17.55%*) 15,340.81 102,752.81 

Depot Profit (8.15%) 8,374.35 111,127.16 
   

Total Construction Costs   111,127.16 
   

                                                      Design Fee (8%) 8,890.17 8,890.17 
                                               Supervision Fee (0%)   
   

                                      Professional Fees  8890.17 
   

Scheme Delivery Cost and Fees   120,017.33 
   

Profit Difference (13%-8.15%) Depot works costs (0.0485) 4,983.51 
   

Total Budget for programme   £125,000.84 
   

Page 57



 4

Work Element  (£) Total (£)  
Miscellaneous Structural Repairs:   

Direct Works Cost  17,483.00 
Depot Overheads (17.55%*) 3,068.27 20,551.27 

Depot Profit (8.15%) 1,674.93 22,226.19 
   

Total Construction Costs   22,226.19 
   

                                                      Design Fee (8%) 1,778.10 1,778.10 
                                               Supervision Fee (0%)   
   

                                       Professional  Fees  1,778.10 
   

Scheme Delivery Cost and Fees  24,004.29 
   

Profit Difference (13%-8.15%) Depot works costs (0.0485) 996.74 
   

Total Budget for programme   £25,001.03 
Table 2 - Cost Breakdown  

*Please note that the specified overhead figures ar e provisional percentages and are 
subject to final approval from Salford City Council  

 
 
1.10 Further schemes and budget estimates will be prepared from the condition 

indices derived from the survey data collected during 2018/19.  Identified 
schemes will be prioritised for inclusion in future programmes of work, subject 
to budget availability, and will be detailed in future briefing notes. 

 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  

Enhancing Life in Salford, Think Efficiency, Improving the Environment 

 
 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 
 

There are no adverse implications relating to equality issues.  Well maintained 
crash barriers ensure the continued safety of the travelling public. A 
community equality impact assessment has been completed and concludes 
that the proposals will have a positive impact on communities. 

 
 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  
 
 Medium – It is important that the existing highway crash barriers are 

inspected, repaired and replaced when appropriate in order to ensure the 
continued safety of the travelling public. 

 
 
 
 

Page 58



 5

 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  Azra Furheen Tel 0161 234 4173.  
 
Date 23rd April 2019 
 
Section 39 of the Road Traffic Act 1988 imposes a duty upon the City Council to:  
 

i) prepare and carry out a programme of measures designed to promote road 
safety and may make contributions towards the cost of measures for 
promoting road safety taken by other authorities or bodies;  

ii) carry out studies into accidents arising out of the use of vehicles on roads 
or part of roads, other than trunk roads, within their area and must, in the 
light of those studies, take such measures as appear to the authority to be 
appropriate to prevent such accidents, including the dissemination of 
information and advice relating to the use of the roads, the giving of 
practical training to road users or any class or description of road users, 
the construction, improvement, maintenance or repair of roads for which 
they are the highway authority and other measures taken in the exercise of 
their powers for controlling, protecting or assisting the movement of traffic 
on roads.  

 
If studies support the installation of the crash barriers in order to improve 
road safety then installation of such barriers would mitigate any liability on 
the part of the local authority for failing in its duty of care to implement 
measures designed to prevent or reduce accidents, provided those barriers 
comply with and have been installed in accordance with all regulatory 
requirements. 

 
Finally, s.41 of the Highways Act 1980 (‘the Act’) places upon highway authorities the 
duty to ‘maintain’ those highways that are maintainable at the public expense. The 
Act defines ‘maintenance’ as including repair for the purposes of the Act.  The said 
highways should be in a fit state to accommodate the ordinary traffic which passes or 
may be expected to pass along them, which would include the maintenance of crash 
barriers where studies have indicated that these should be installed to improve 
highway safety.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 59



 6

 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
Supplied by:  Alison Woods, Finance Officer, Tel. 925 1135 
 
Date: 23rd April 2019 
 
There is sufficient capital funding within the approved Highway Crash Barrier 
Investment Programme for 2019/20, to fund the £150k works identified within this 
report.  

 
Close monitoring of expenditure will be necessary to ensure that the programme of 
works is delivered within the allocated resources. 
 

 
 
 
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  Christine Flisk, Category Manager 
Level 2  
 
Date 23rd April 2019 
 
Urban Vision Partnership was procured through a fully compliant OJEU procurement 
process and is in contract with the council until 2020. The exclusivity agreement with 
Urban Vision Partnership for delivering Highway services is in place to deliver works 
to under the DSPA agreement to a value of £140k.  A variation to the DSPA can be 
made with agreement by both parties.   All works above the agreed threshold will be 
procured in line with CSO’s from February 2020.  The procurement team will work 
closely with UV and will endeavour to facilitate a smooth transition back into the 
council.  Procurement engagement: None 
 
 
HR IMPLICATIONS: There are no HR implications associated with this report 

 
  
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: Urban Vision Partnership Limited  

 
 
CONTACT OFFICER:  Steve Mangan TEL NO: 0161 603 4034 

 
 
WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES:  All 

 

Page 60



U
rb

a
n

 V
is

io
n

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 L
td

H
ig

h
w

a
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

H
ig

h
w

a
y
 D

e
p

o
t

S
w

in
to

n
 H

a
ll
 R

o
a

d
S

w
in

to
n

S
a
lf

o
rd

M
2

7
 4

H
H

T
it
le

�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��

�
�
	



�
�
��

1
:6

5
,7

4
7


�

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 A

L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
ra

s
h
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3a Darwell Avenue, Kirkman Avenue and Barton Road, Barton.
	3b Hallsworth Road, Winton.
	3c Hankinson Way / Rossall Way Area, Pendleton - SBNI - TRO 2232.
	3e Highway Drainage Investment Programme (DIP) Capital Budget 2019/20 and Culvert Investment Programme (CIP) Capital Budget 2019/20.
	3f Highway Crash Barrier Investment Programme (CBIP) - Capital Budget 2019/20.
	Report
	Appendix A


